
 

 
 
 

Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3910 if you need it in large print, audio 

or another format. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda 

Civic Centre,  
Arnot Hill Park,  

Arnold, 
Nottinghamshire,  

NG5 6LU 
 

 

 

Planning Committee 
 

 

 

Date: Wednesday 19 November 2014 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Centre. 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Lyndsey Parnell 

Members' Services Officer 

0115 901 3910 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

 

 

Planning Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor John Truscott 
  

Vice-Chair Councillor Barbara Miller 

 
Councillor Pauline Allan 
Councillor Roy Allan 
Councillor Peter Barnes 
Councillor Chris Barnfather 
Councillor Denis Beeston MBE 
Councillor Alan Bexon 
Councillor John Boot 
Councillor Ged Clarke 
Councillor Bob Collis 
Councillor Andrew Ellwood 
Councillor Cheryl Hewlett 
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth 
Councillor Mike Hope 
Councillor Meredith Lawrence 
Councillor Marje Paling 
Councillor Lynda Pearson 
Councillor Colin Powell 
Councillor Suzanne Prew-Smith 

 
 



 

 

 
 

AGENDA 

 

Page 

 

1 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions. 
 

 

2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 29 
October 2014 
 

1 - 12 

 Planning Committee Protocol.   

3 Declaration of Interests 
 

 

4 Application Number 2014 0559 - The Cavendish Pub, Cavendish Road, 
Carlton, Nottingham 
 

15 - 34 

5 Planning Delegation Action Sheets 
 

35 - 36 

6 Future Planning Applications 
 

37 - 38 

7 Any other items which the Chair considers urgent. 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday 29 October 2014 

 
Councillor John Truscott (Chair) 

 
In Attendance: Councillor Barbara Miller 

Councillor Pauline Allan 
Councillor Roy Allan 
Councillor Peter Barnes 
Councillor Chris Barnfather 
Councillor Denis Beeston MBE 
Councillor Alan Bexon 
Councillor John Boot 
Councillor Bob Collis 

Councillor Andrew Ellwood 
Councillor Cheryl Hewlett 
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth 
Councillor Mike Hope 
Councillor Meredith Lawrence 
Councillor Lynda Pearson 
Councillor Colin Powell 
Councillor Suzanne Prew-Smith 

 

Absent: Councillor Ged Clarke and Councillor Marje Paling 

Officers in Attendance: P Baguley, N Morley, L Parnell and L Sugden 

 
233    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS.  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Paling and 
Clarke. 
 

234    TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 8 OCTOBER 2014.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record, subject to the following amendment: 
 

1. That the apologies for absence read: 
 

“Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Collis and 
Barnfather. 

 
Councillor Clarke attended as a substitute for Councillor Pauline 
Allan, who had given apologies.”  

 
235    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 
None. 
 

236    APPLICATION NUMBER 2014/0665 - LAND AT 96 PLAINS ROAD, 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 

NOTTINGHAM, NG3 5RH  
 
Proposed Residential Development (outline). 
 
Mr Newell, the applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Mr Mulhern, of Mapperley Golf Course, spoke in objection to the 
application.  
 
RESOLVED to GRANT OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION, subject 
to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement with the 
Borough Council as local planning authority and with the County 
Council as education authority for the provision of, or financial 
contributions towards Educational Facilities and Open Space; and 
subject to the following conditions:     
 
Conditions 
 
1. Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made 

to the Borough Council not later than three years from the date of 
this permission. 

 
2. The vehicular access hereby permitted shall be constructed in the 

position shown on the Draft Illustrative Layout Plan drawing 
(13/105-Olalt v.1), deposited on 4th June 2014. 

 
3. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Borough Council, 

development must not commence until the following has been 
complied with:Site Characterisation An assessment of the nature 
and extent of any potential contamination has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Borough Council.  This 
assessment must be undertaken by a competent person, and 
shall assess any contamination on the site, whether or not it 
originates on the site.  Moreover, it must include; a survey of the 
extent, scale and nature of contamination and; an assessment of 
the potential risks to: human health, property, adjoining land, 
controlled waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and 
ancient monuments. Submission of Remediation Scheme Where 
required, a detailed remediation scheme (to bring the site to a 
condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable 
risks to critical receptors) should be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Borough Council.  The scheme must include all 
works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and 
remediation criteria, an appraisal of remedial options, and 
proposal of the preferred option(s), and a timetable of works and 
site management procedures. 

 
4. In the event that remediation is required to render the 

development suitable for use, the agreed remediation scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved timetable 

Page 2



 

of works.  Prior to occupation of any building(s) a Verification 
Report (that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation 
carried out) must be submitted and approved in writing by the 
Borough Council. 

 
5. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 

out the approved development that was not previously identified it 
must be reported in writing immediately to the Borough Council 
and once the Borough Council has identified the part of the site 
affected by the unexpected contamination development must be 
halted on that part of the site.  An assessment must be 
undertaken in accordance with the requirements above, and 
where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme, together 
with a timetable for its implementation and verification reporting, 
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough 
Council. 

 
6. Before development is commenced, including site clearance and 

demolition works, there shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Borough Council a Dust Management Plan.  The 
Plan shall be produced and carried out in accordance with 'The 
Control of Dust and Emissions from Construction and Demolition' 
(Best Practice Guidance).  The Plan shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior 
agreed in writing by the Borough Council. 

 
7. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Borough Council a site level 
survey plan showing existing and proposed site levels in relation 
to adjacent properties.  The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior 
agreed in writing by the Borough Council. 

 
8. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of the 
parking and turning facilities, access widths, gradients, surfacing, 
street lighting, structures, Traffic Regulation Orders and drainage.  
All details submitted to the Borough Council for approval shall 
comply with the County Council's Highway Design and Parking 
Guides which are current at the time the details are submitted.  
The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details, which shall be retained for the lifetime of the 
development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the 
Borough Council. 

 
9. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of wheel 
washing facilities to be used by vehicles entering and leaving site 
during the construction.  The approved wheel washing facilities 
shall be maintained in working order at all times during the 

Page 3



 

construction period and shall be used by every vehicle carrying 
mud, dirt or other debris on its wheels before leaving the site so 
that no mud, dirt or other debris is discharged or carried on to a 
public road. 

 
10. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Borough Council drainage plans 
for the proposed means of disposal of surface water and foul 
sewage. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with 
the approved details before the development is first brought into 
use, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough 
Council. 

 
11. Before development is commenced, including site preparation, 

the existing trees on adjoing land shall be protected in 
accordance with the details specified within the Arboricultural 
Report and Method Statement dated 9th June 2014 by Forest 
Farm Tree Services.  The protection measures shall be retained 
until all construction works have been completed. 

 
12. Before development is commenced, there shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of a 
scheme for the incorporation of integrated bird and bat boxes 
within the fabric of a proportion of the houses; bird boxes should 
target species such as house sparrow and swallow.  The scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
before the development is first brought into use and shall be 
retained for the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise 
prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council. 

 
13. No vegetation clearance or ground works shall take place on site 

during the bird nesting season (1st March to 31st August inclusive 
in any given year), unless pre-commencement checks for nesting 
birds have been undertaken by an appropriately qualified 
ecologist and the outcome reported to the Borough Council.  If 
any nesting birds are found to be present, details of any proposed 
mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Borough Council before the development commences. The 
mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details before development commences, unless 
otherwise prior agreed in writing by the Borough Council. 

 
14. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into 

use until all drives and parking areas are surfaced in a bound 
material (not loose gravel). The surfaced drives and parking areas 
shall then be maintained in such bound material for the lifetime of 
the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the 
Borough Council. 

 

Page 4



 

15. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into 
use until the access driveways and parking areas are constructed 
with provision to prevent the unregulated discharge of surface 
water from the driveways and parking areas to the public 
highway.  The provision to prevent the unregulated discharge of 
surface water to the public highway shall then be retained for the 
lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in 
writing by the Borough Council. 

 
16. The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved 

matters in relation to appearance shall include details of the 
materials to be used in the external elevations and roofs of the 
proposed buildings.  The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained for 
the lifetime of the development, unless otherwise prior agreed in 
writing by the Borough Council. 

 
17. The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved 

matters in relation to landscaping shall include: (a) details of the 
size, species, positions and density of all trees and shrubs to be 
planted, which shall consist of native species, ideally of local 
provenance, where possible; (b) details of the boundary 
treatments, including those to individual plot boundaries; (c) the 
proposed means of surfacing access roads, car parking areas, 
roadways and the frontages of properties such as driveways and 
footpaths to front doors and (d) a programme of implementation. 
The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details, which shall be retained for the lifetime of the 
development, unless otherwise prior agreed in writing by the 
Borough Council. 

 
18. If within a period of five years beginning with the date of the 

planting of any tree or shrub, approved as reserved matters in 
relation to landscaping, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub 
that is planted in replacement of it, is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed or dies, or becomes in the opinion of the Borough 
Council seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub of 
the same species and size as that originally planted shall be 
planted at the same place, unless otherwise prior agreed in 
writing by the Borough Council. 

 
19. Should any bats be found during demolition, work must stop 

immediately.  If the bats do not voluntarily fly out, the aperture 
shall be carefully covered over to provide protection from the 
elements whilst leaving a small gap for the bat to escape should it 
so desire.  EMEC Ecology (0115 964 4828) or The Bat 
Conservation Trust (08451 300228) should be contacted 
immediately for further advice and any advice must be followed 
before any further demolition work takes place. 

 

Page 5



 

20. Should any common species of amphibian be found during works, 
they should be removed carefully by hand to areas away from the 
works, such as under scrub habitat not to be affected by the 
works.  Gloves should be worn to avoid touching amphibians by 
hand.  If it is proposed to drain the pond, this should be carried 
out between 1st July to 31st March inclusive in any given year, 
which will allow sufficient time for any frog tadpoles present to 
have changed into small frogs.  These can then be moved into 
safe areas beneath hedgerows etc. 

 
21. During the construction phase, if any trenches are left open 

overnight, they should be left with a sloping end or ramp to allow 
badgers or other animals that may fall into the excavation to 
escape, and any pipes over 200 mm in diameter should be 
capped off at night to prevent animals from entering them. 

 
Reasons 
 
1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
2. For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
3. To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to 

treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect 
controlled waters in accordance with the aims of Policies ENV1 
and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan 
(Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
4. To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to 

treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect 
controlled waters in accordance with the aims of Policies ENV1 
and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan 
(Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
5. To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to 

treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect 
controlled waters in accordance with the aims of Policies ENV1 
and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan 
(Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
6. To protect the residential amenity of the area in accordance with 

the aims of Section 11 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
7. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the 

aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local 
Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 

Page 6



 

8. To ensure that the roads of the proposed development are 
designed to an adoptable standard in order to accord with Policy 
ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain 
Policies Saved 2014). 

 
9. In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy ENV1 

of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies 
Saved 2014). 

 
10. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the 

aims of Sections 10 and 11 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Policy 1 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling 
Borough (September 2014). 

 
11. In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with the aims of 

Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan 
(Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
12. To enhance biodiversity in accordance with the National Planning 

Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for 
Gedling Borough (September 2014). 

 
13. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance 

with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014). 

 
14. To reduce the possibility of deleterious material being deposited 

on the public highway (loose stones etc), in the interests of 
highway safety in accordance with Policy ENV1 of the Gedling 
Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
15. To ensure surface water from the site is not deposited on the 

public highway causing dangers to road users, in the interests of 
highway safety in accordance with Policy ENV1 of the Gedling 
Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
16. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with Policy 

ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain 
Policies Saved 2014). 

 
17. To ensure a satisfactory development and that the landscaping of 

the development as proposed at reserved matters stage accords 
with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough 
(September 2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough 
Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
18. To ensure a satisfactory development, in accordance with Policy 

10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 
2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement 
Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

Page 7



 

 
19. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance 

with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014). 

 
20. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance 

with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014). 

 
21. To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance 

with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014). 

 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The development has been considered in accordance with the Gedling 
Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014), the 
Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough and the National Planning 
Policy Framework, where  appropriate.  In the opinion of the Borough 
Council, the proposed development largely accords with the relevant 
policies of these frameworks and plans.  Where the development 
conflicts with the Development Plan, it is the opinion of the Borough 
Council that other material considerations indicate that permission 
should be granted.  The benefits of granting the proposal outweigh any 
adverse impact of departing from the Development Plan. 
 
Notes to Applicant 
 
Your attention is drawn to the attached comments from Nottinghamshire 
County Council's Highway and Nature Conservation sections, 
Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust, Environment Agency, Severn Trent 
Water and the Borough Council's Public Protection section. 
 
The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may 
contain unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining 
feature is encountered during development, this should be reported 
immediately to The Coal Authority on 0845 762   6848. Further 
information is also available on The Coal Authority website at 
www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, 
current and future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal 
Authority's Property Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at 
www.groundstability.com. 
 
The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the 
applicant, in accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, based on seeking solutions to problems 
arising in relation to dealing with the planning application. This has been 
achieved by providing details of issues raised in consultation responses 
and providing updates on the application's progress. 
 

Page 8



 

237    APPLICATION NUMBER 2014/0864 - 384 WESTDALE LANE WEST, 
MAPPERLEY, NOTTINGHAMSHIRE, NG3 6ES  
 
Change of Use from residential to day nursery. 
 
Ms. Maria Fullwood, the applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Mrs Thomas, a local resident, spoke in objection to the application.  
 
RESOLVED to GRANT CONDITIONAL PLANNING PERMISSION 
subject to the following conditions:- 
 
Conditions 
 
1. The development must be begun not later than three years 

beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be operated in 

accordance with the Planning Application Forms and Plans 
received on 6th July 2014. 

 
3. The day nursery shall have no more than 30 children in their care 

at any one time. 
 
4. The day nursery shall only operate between the hours of 7:30 am 

and 6.30 pm Monday to Friday and shall not operate on a 
Saturday, Sunday or on a Bank Holiday. 

 
5. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into 

use until the dropped vehicle footway crossing and access has 
been widened to 5.25 metres in width and is made available for 
use and constructed to the Local Highway Authority specifications 
to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
6. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into 

use until the parking, turning and servicing areas are surfaced in 
a bound material with parking bays clearly delineated in 
accordance with the plans received on the 6th July 2014. The 
parking, turning and servicing areas shall be maintained in the 
bound material for the life of the development and shall not be 
used for any purpose other than the parking, turning and service 
areas. 

 
7. Before the nursery is first brought into use a layout plan showing 

the precise area to be used as the children's play area, together 
with details of how the play area will be clearly defined on site and 
details of the proposed surfacing of the rear play area shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The rear play area shall be sited, defined and surfaced 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the development 

Page 9



 

being brought into use. Children attending the nursery shall only 
play in the area defined on the approved plan. 

 
 
8. Before the nursery is first brought into use precise details of the 

acoustic fence to be installed shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details to be 
submitted and approved shall set out the type, height and location 
of the proposed acoustic fence and provide a method statement 
outlining how the acoustic fence shall be installed.  The acoustic 
fence shall be installed in accordance with the approved details 
prior to the nursery first being brought into use and retained 
thereafter for the lifetime of the development. 

 
9. The existing garage shown on the plan received on the 6th July 

2014 shall remain in use for the purposes of parking for staff at 
the nursery. It shall be kept available for the accommodation of 
staff parking at all times and shall not be used for any other 
purpose unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Borough 
Council as the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reasons 
 
1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
3. To ensure a satisfactory development, in accordance with the 

aims of policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local 
Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
4. To safeguard the residential amenity of neighbouring properties 

and in order to accord with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the 
Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies 
Saved 2014) and Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for 
Gedling Borough. 

 
5. In the interests of Highway Safety. 
 
6. To ensure that adequate off-street parking provision is made to 

reduce the possibilities of the proposed development leading to 
on-street parking in the area. 

 
7. To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residents in order to 

comply with  the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough 
(September 2014) Policy 10.  

 

Page 10



 

8. To ensure that the details of the development are acceptable , in 
accordance with the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough 
Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
9. In the interests of road safety, in accordance with the aims of 

policies ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan 
(Certain Saved Policies 2014). 

 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The proposed use is an acceptable use in this location, results in no 
undue impact on neighbouring properties or the area in general. The 
proposal is also acceptable from a highway safety viewpoint. The 
proposal therefore accords with Policies ENV1 and C3 of the Gedling 
Borough Council Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 
2014). 
 
Notes to Applicant 
 
Planning Statement - The Borough Council has worked positively and 
proactively with the applicant in accordance with paragraphs 186 to 187 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
The attached permission is for development which will involve building 
up to, or close to, the boundary of the site.  Your attention is drawn to 
the fact that if you should need access to neighbouring land in another 
ownership in order to facilitate the construction of the building and its 
future maintenance you are advised to obtain permission from the owner 
of the land for such access before beginning your development. 
 

238    PLANNING DELEGATION PANEL ACTION SHEETS  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the information. 
 

239    FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the information. 
 

240    ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.  
 
The Chair reminded Members of a Planning Seminar scheduled to take 
place on the 7th November and a technical briefing taking place on the 
14th of November. 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

The meeting finished at 6.35 pm 
 
 

 
 

Signed by Chair:    
Date:   

  

Page 12



PLANNING COMMITTEE PROTOCOL 

 

1. This protocol is intended to ensure that planning decisions made at the Planning Committee 
meeting are reached, and are seen to be, in a fair, open and impartial manner, and that only 
relevant planning matters are taken into account. 

 

2. Planning Committee is a quasi-judicial body, empowered by the Borough Council to 
determine planning applications in accordance with its constitution.  In making legally 
binding decisions therefore, it is important that the committee meeting is run in an ordered 
way, with Councillors, officers and members of the public understanding their role within the 
process. 

 

3. In terms of Councillors’ role at the Planning Committee, whilst Councillors have a special 
duty to their ward constituents, including those who did not vote for them, their over-riding 
duty is to the whole borough.  Therefore, whilst it is acceptable to approach Councillors 
before the meeting, no opinion will be given, as this would compromise their ability to 
consider the application at the meeting itself.  The role of Councillors at committee is not to 
represent the views of their constituents, but to consider planning applications in the 
interests of the whole Borough.  When voting on applications, Councillors may therefore 
decide to vote against the views expressed by their constituents.  Members may also 
request that their votes are recorded. 
 

4. Planning Committee meetings are in public and members of the public are welcome to 
attend and observe; however, they are not allowed to address the meeting unless they have 
an interest in a planning application and follow the correct procedure. 
 

5. Speaking at Planning Committee is restricted to applicants for planning permission, 
residents and residents’ associations who have made written comments to the Council 
about the application and these have been received before the committee report is 
published. Professional agents representing either applicants or residents are not allowed to 
speak on their behalf. A maximum of 3 minutes per speaker is allowed, so where more than 
1 person wishes to address the meeting, all parties with a common interest should normally 
agree who should represent them. No additional material or photographs will be allowed to 
be presented to the committee. 
 

6. Other than as detailed above, no person is permitted to address the Planning Committee 
and interruptions to the proceedings will not be tolerated. Should the meeting be interrupted, 
the Chairman will bring the meeting to order. In exceptional circumstances the Chairman 
can suspend the meeting, or clear the chamber and continue behind closed doors, or 
adjourn the meeting to a future date. 
 

7. After Councillors have debated the application, a vote will be taken. If Councillors wish to 
take a decision contrary to Officer recommendation, a motion to do so will be moved, 
seconded and voted upon. Where the decision is to refuse permission contrary to Officer 
recommendation, the motion will include reasons for refusal which are relevant to the 
planning considerations on the application, and which are capable of being supported and 
substantiated should an appeal be lodged. The Chairman may wish to adjourn the meeting 
for a short time for Officers to assist in drafting the reasons for refusal. The Chairman may 
move that the vote be recorded.  

 

8. Where members of the public wish to leave the chamber before the end of the meeting, they 
should do so in an orderly and respectful manner, refraining from talking until they have 
passed through the chamber doors, as talking within the foyer can disrupt the meeting. 
 

12 January 2011 

 

Agenda Annex

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Application Number: 2014/0559 

Location: 
 
The Cavendish Pub, Cavendish Road, Carlton, Nottingham 

 
 
NOTE:  

 This map is provided only for purposes of site location and should not be read as an up to date representation of the area around the site. 

Reproduced with the permission of the Controller of H.M.S.O. Crown Copyright No. LA 078026 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution of civil proceedings 

Agenda Item 4

Page 15



 

Report to Planning Committee 

Application Number: 2014/0559 

Location: The Cavendish Pub, Cavendish Road, Carlton, Nottingham 

Proposal: Demolition of existing pub and redevelopment of the site to 
create 38 no new dwellings (8 no. 1-bed units, 24 no. 2-bed 
units and 6 no. 3-bed units). 

Applicant: Mr John Murphy 

Agent: 
 
Miss Jessica Rowden 

Case Officer 
 
David Gray 

 

Site Description 
 
The application site relates to a two-storey former public house / restaurant situated 
centrally on a large plot measuring approximately 0.588 hectares. The site is located 
to the east of Cavendish Road within the urban residential area of Carlton. There is a 
significant drop in level of the site, approximately 10 metres, from the north to the 
south. To the north of the site is Carlton Parish Unregistered Footpath which is an 
unregistered right of way between Cavendish Road and Westdale Lane.  
 
Residential properties are located to the north, south and east of the site. The rear 
gardens of properties on Southview Road back onto the east boundary of the 
application site and are in an elevated position. The north, east and south 
boundaries of the site are defined by mature vegetation and trees. The housing to 
the west of Cavendish Road and to the north of the application site is Post War 50’s / 
60’s semi-detached properties. The properties to the south are modern retirement 
bungalows, in a terrace, fronting Cavendish Road.  
 
The site currently has two vehicle access points onto Cavendish Road. The majority 
of the site fronting onto Cavendish Road is defined by a tarmac car park that served 
the public house and provided approximately 52 car parking spaces. Cavendish 
Road has traffic calming measures to the front of the application site. 
 
Proposed Development 
 
The proposal seeks Full Planning Permission for the demolition of the existing public 
house and the erection of 38no new residential dwellings consisting of: -  
 
� 8 no. 1 bedroom units; 
� 24 no. 2 bedroom units; 

Page 16



� 6 no. 3 bedroom units. 
 
The layout plan shows the properties to be set around a central ‘T’ shaped road 
layout culminating in two cul-de-sac turning heads and parking courts.  
 
The development would consist of 8 property types. 
 
� 1 bed cluster units – footprint dimensions: 5.225 m (width) x 5.293 metres 

(depth) 
� 2 bed properties – footprint dimensions: 5.523 m (width) x 6.569 metres 

(depth). There are 3 house types with these footprint dimensions accounting 
for the varying window and door locations and internal layouts.  
� 2 bedroom properties – footprint dimensions 4.765 metres (width) x 7.77 

metre (depth) 
� 2 bedroom properties - footprint dimensions 5.215 metres (width) x 7.77 

metre (depth) 
� 3 bedroom properties - footprint dimensions 5.523 metres (width) x 7.219 

metres (depth) 
� 3 bedroom properties - footprint dimensions 4.765 metres (width) x 8.945 

metres (depth) 
 
The 11 properties fronting Cavendish Road would consist of 2 terraces with 4 x 2 
bedroom properties, and 1 terrace with 3 x 2 bedroom properties. The new access 
road would have a pair of 2 bedroom semi-detached dwellings facing north.  
 
The north of the site would accommodate 2 cluster units consisting of 8 x 1 bedroom 
maisonettes and a parking court.  
 
The south boundary of the site would be backed onto by 1 row of terraced properties 
consisting of 4 x 3 bedroom properties and 1 terrace consisting of 2 x 2 bedroom 
properties and 1 x 3 bedroom property.  
 
The east boundary of the site would consist of 3 terraces consisting of a mixture of 9 
x 2 bedroom properties and 1 x 3 bedroom property.  
 
Cross sections have been provided showing that, when developed, there would be a 
slight slope on the site from north to south. The northeast corner of the site adjoining 
the rear boundaries with properties on South View Road would have a retaining wall 
with a height of approximately 1.8 metres.  
 
Supporting documents include a Design and Access Statement and an Arboricultural 
Implications Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement. 
 
The units are to be adopted by a housing association as affordable dwellings, 
providing a benefit to local people.  
 
The materials proposed for the external elevations would be a quality buff facing 
brickwork with contrasting white render to feature gables and spandrel panels.  
 
The adoptable access road would be illuminated at night by standard lighting 

Page 17



columns as required. All dwellings would have wall-mounted external lights to their 
individual garden areas. Low-level bollard-style luminaries would be provided to 
communal driveways and parking areas to ensure safe level of illumination.  
 
Consultations 
 
Nottinghamshire County Council (Highway Authority) –  
 
The revised layout is now acceptable in principle, subject to a detailed design to be 
undertaken under a section 38 / 278 agreement. No objections subject to 
recommended conditions which cover providing the parking and turning areas, 
details to prevent debris onto the highway, and the details of the new road. 
 
No S106 contributions have been sought for integrated transport measures.  
 
Severn Trent Water – No objections subject to condition requiring drainage plans to 
be submitted and approved.  
 
Wildlife Trust –  
 
Habitats: 
No particularly notable habitats were recorded on site, although trees, scrub and 
grassland should be retained where possible. The report recommends mitigation for 
the loss of brash and dead wood coverings which should be secured.  
 
Bats: 
The lack of internal inspection of the building is considered to be a constraint to the 
survey. Although few access points were noted from external inspection, the report 
does not rule out the possible use of the building by roosting bats. An internal 
inspection of the building, together with emergence/re-entry surveys where 
appropriate should therefore be carried out prior to determination of the application. 
 
The report summary suggests that mature trees are present on site. If these are to 
be affected by the development, they should be fully assessed for bat roost potential 
(including emergence/re-entry surveys where necessary) prior to determination of 
the application. 
 
The Wildlife Trust can provide further comment regarding bats, including any 
proposals for mitigation, once the above surveys have been carried out. 
 
Other mammals: 
Due to lack of suitable habitat and field signs, it would be unlikely that there would be 
any impact on otter, water vole and badger is considered unlikely. 
 
Breeding birds: 
Suitable habitat and direct evidence of nesting activity was recorded on site and 
therefore any works will be constrained by the bird breeding season. No removal of 
hedgerows, trees or shrubs or works to or demolition of buildings or structures that 
may be used by breeding birds should take place between 1st March and 31st 
August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed 

Page 18



check of vegetation for active birds’ nests immediately before the vegetation is 
cleared and provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that 
there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any 
such written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority. All 
birds, their nests and eggs (except pest species) are protected by the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). 
 
The recommendation for mitigation for any loss of nesting habitat in the form of 
native tree and shrub planting and installation of artificial nest boxes is supplied. 
 
Great crested newts, amphibians: 
We are satisfied that the present of great crested newts on the site is highly unlikely 
due to a lack of suitable habitat. Should any common amphibians be encountered 
during works, they should be carefully moved to an undisturbed area of the site 
where suitable cover is present - gloves should be worn. Any potential refugia such 
as brash piles should be dismantled by hand. 
 
Reptiles: 
The report has assessed the site and finds that suitable habitat for slow worm exists. 
Survey work would be required to be carried out between mid-March and early 
October. This survey work should be carried out prior to determination of the 
application to ensure that potential impacts on this protected species are properly 
considered and to enable any required mitigation to be incorporated into 
development plans. Slow-worm are protected under Schedule 5, Section 9 (1 and 5) 
of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and 
Rights of Way Act 2000 against deliberate or reckless killing and injuring and sale. 
 
Invertebrates: 
The site is unlikely to support any notable invertebrate species. It is suggested that 
the record of girdled snail should be submitted to the Nottinghamshire Biological and 
Geological Records Centre to assist with monitoring of this alien species. 
 
Ramblers Association (Gedling and Dukeries Group) – Support the application and 
welcome the protection of the existing footpath. It is expected that the width of the 
footpath would be retained and the flanking of the grass verges be minimal with the 
lighting maintained.  
 
Nottinghamshire County Council (Forestry Manager) – The survey presented should 
be viewed as factually correct and that it offers an appropriate detail to enable 
appendix 3 of the tree survey document to be used as a non-standard condition to 
ensure adequate and safe tree retention on site should development be granted. 
 
Housing Strategy and Development – The principle of the development is supported 
as it fits with the Council’s priorities of providing more homes of the right type, in the 
right place. It also makes use of previously developed land.  
 
There is a requirement of at least 20% of the properties (i.e. 8) to be provided as 
affordable rent, and in accordance with the provisions of Affordable Housing SPD.  
 
Nottinghamshire County Council (Education) – The Development of 38 dwellings 

Page 19



would yield an additional 8 primary and 6 secondary places. Based on current pupil 
projections, the additional 6 secondary aged pupils can be accommodated in existing 
schools. The catchment school (Haddon Primary) is, however at capacity and unable 
to accommodate the additional 8 primary places. An education contribution of 
£91,640 (8 x £11,455) to provide additional primary provision to serve the proposed 
development would be sought.  
 
Parks and Street Care – No comments received, in relation to whether a contribution 
should be sought on public open space. (Consultation Expired: 12th June 2014)  
 
 
 
Waste Services – No comments received (Consultation Expired: 12th June 2014) 
 
Nottinghamshire County Council (Rights of Way) – The application could impact on 
Carlton Parish Unregistered Path, which runs alongside the northern boundary of the 
site. Although not a registered Right of Way this path accrued public rights over the 
years.  
 
Whilst not an objection this office would require that the availability of the path is not 
affected or obstructed in any way by the proposed development at this location 
unless subject to appropriate diversion or closure orders. That the Rights of Way 
officer is consulted in any resurfacing or gating issues, also developers should be 
aware of potential path users in the area who should not be impeded or endangered 
in any way.  
 
National Health Service – No comments have been received. Any comments 
received will be reported verbally at Planning Committee.  
 
Neighbouring Properties were notified and a Site Notice posted and 7 letters of 
representation were received as a result. The comments can be outlined as follows: -  
 
Design and Layout 
 
� It is requested that the car parking court adjacent to the footpath is relocated, 

as it could attract anti-social behaviour.  
� The parking court is not overlooked by any of the residential properties.  
� The dark grey windows would be out of keeping with other properties in the 

area.  
 
Residential Amenity 
 
� Concerns have been raised over the boundary treatments being adequate 

and suitable for security.  
� Concerns raised over the proximity of plots 11 and 12 to the rear of properties 

on South View Road.  
� The car parking court would result in an unpleasant outlook from properties on 

South View Road. Car lights approaching the car parking court to the south of 
the site would shine directly into windows of properties on South View Road.  
� The two car parking courts could attract anti-social behaviour to the detriment 

Page 20



of properties that back onto the areas on South View Road.  
 
Other Considerations 
 
� Comments received with regards to the surfacing, maintenance, and lighting 

of the parking court.  
� Thought should be given to the potential for renewable energy to be 

incorporated into the scheme.  
� The car parking court to the north corner of the site could attract fly tipping 

and anti-social behaviour.  
� Questions have been raised on the height and materials for the retaining wall 

in the northeast corner of the site.  
� It is requested that the footpath has a barrier.  
� Concerns raised with regards to the potential pollution caused by on site 

preparation and development.  
� Trees and foliage should be removed in the proper manner.  
� Bollards or gates should be incorporated at the entrance to the footpath to 

prevent vehicular access.  
 
Planning Considerations 
 
The relevant national planning policy guidance in respect of this application is set out 
in the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012). The core planning 
principles set out in the guidance is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. In particular the following chapters are relevant in considering this 
application:  
 
� 6. Delivering a wide choice of quality homes  
� 7. Requiring good design 

 
Section 6 of the NPPF states inter-alia that housing applications should be 
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
Section 7 of the NPPF states that it is important to plan positively for the 
achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all development, including 
individual buildings... decisions should aim to ensure developments, amongst other 
things, respond to local character and history, and reflect the identity of local 
surroundings and materials. Permission should be refused for development of poor 
design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and 
quality of an area and the way it functions.  
 
Gedling Borough Council at its meeting on 10th September approved the Aligned 
Core Strategy (ACS) for Gedling Borough (September 2014) which is now part of the 
development plan for the area.  The following policies are relevant: -  
 

� Policy 2 – The Spatial Strategy. 
� Policy 8 – Housing Size, Mix and Choice. 
� Policy 10 - Design and Enhancing Local Identity.  

 
Appendix E of the ACS refers to the Saved Policies from Adopted Local Plans. The 
following policies contained within the Gedling Borough Council Replacement Local 

Page 21



Plan (Certain Policies Saved) 2014 are relevant: -  
 

� ENV1 – Development Criteria  
� H7 – (Residential Development On Unidentified Sites Within the Urban 

Area and the Defined Village Envelopes) 
� H16 (Design of Residential Development) 

 
Criterion a., c. and d. of Policy ENV1 of the Replacement Local Plan are relevant in 
this instance. These state that planning permission will be granted for development 
provided it is in accordance with other Local Plan policies and that proposals are, 
amongst other things, of a high standard of design which have regard to the 
appearance of the area and do not adversely affect the area by reason of their scale, 
bulk, form, layout or materials.  Development proposals should include adequate 
provisions for the safe and convenient access and circulation of pedestrians and 
vehicles and incorporate crime prevention measures in the design and layout. 
 
Design and layout are also considered in criterion a. and b. of Policy H7 and criterion 
c. of Policy H16 of the Replacement Local Plan. These policies state inter alia that 
permission will be granted for residential development, including conversions and the 
change of use of buildings to residential use within the urban area and the defined 
village envelopes provided it is of a high standard of design and does not adversely 
affect the area by reason of its scale, bulk, form, layout or materials and that it would 
not result in the loss of buildings or other features including open space which make 
an important contribution to the appearance of the area. 
 
Policy 10 of the ACS also looks at design and enhancing local identity and reflects 
the guidance contained in both the NPPF and the Replacement Local Plan policies. 
 
In respect to car parking, regard should be had to the Borough Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Document ‘Parking Provision for Residential Developments’ 
(May 2012).  
 
In making a recommendation in relation to this application, regard has been given to 
the above legislation and policy and as a result it has been determined that the main 
planning considerations in relation to this proposal are: -  
 

a) The principle of developing the site; 
b) Whether the proposal makes efficient and effective use of the land; 
c) Whether the design of the development is acceptable; 
d) The highway implications of the development, including parking provision; 
e) Whether there would be an adverse impact on neighbouring properties; 
f) Other matters raised by local residents. 

 
Each of the above aspects is considered in detail below.  
 
The Principle of Developing the Site 
 
The site is located within the main urban area of Greater Nottingham and therefore 
accords with Policy 2 of the ACS which adopts a strategy of urban concentration with 
regeneration.  

Page 22



 
The proposal is for the demolition of a Public House for residential development. 
Policy C4 of the Replacement Local Plan (2014) states that planning permission will 
not be granted if development would lead to the loss of community facilities. The 
reasoned justification at paragraph 6.25 refers to retaining facilities such as public 
houses in rural locations. Similarly, the NPPF refers to retaining community facilities 
such as public houses in villages. The proposed development involves a loss of a 
community facility outside a local centre and within the urban area of Carlton, not 
within the local centre or within the rural area. The application site is within the urban 
area of Carlton and is close to community facilities and services including the nearby 
centres of Carlton Hill and Mapperley Plains. I therefore do not consider the loss of 
the Public House would lead to the loss of a community facility in a rural location.  
 
When referring to the NPPF the definition of brownfield land is ‘previously developed 
land that which is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including the curtilage 
of the developed land and any associated fixed surface infrastructure’. 
 
Given the location of the development within the established residential area of 
Carlton and its former use previously developed and therefore brownfield land, there 
is no objection in principle to the redevelopment of the site for residential purposes. It 
is also my opinion that the development would be in a sustainable location delivering 
economic development that would provide a wider choice of homes to serve the local 
community. The redevelopment of the site is therefore considered acceptable in 
principle.  
 
Efficient and Effective Use of Land 
 
The development is to provide 38 homes on a site of 0.588 hectares, equating to a 
residential density of 65 dwellings per hectare which accords with the requirements 
of Policy H8 of the Replacement Local Plan 2014 which requires 30 dwellings per 
hectare. 
 
I am also of the opinion that the application site is of sufficient size to accommodate 
the 38 no dwellings with the layout proposed with-out appearing cramped or over-
intensive.   
 
The proposed development is being brought forward for affordable housing to reflect 
demand for that type of housing within the local area. The provision of housing that is 
of a size, type and tenure that meets local needs will assist in ensuring that land is 
used as effectively and efficiently as possible providing a wider mix of housing to 
serve the local community.  
 
Whilst it is noted that all the units of the scheme are to be provided by a Housing 
Association, the council’s requirement is for only 20%. Therefore in this instance it is 
only reasonable to condition that at least 20% of the units are provided as affordable. 
Should planning permission be forthcoming a condition would be attached requiring 
details of the arrangements that will be put in place to ensure that 20% the housing 
is provided as affordable housing as defined by Annex 2 of the NPPF.  
 
Design  

Page 23



 
Policies ENV1, H7 and H16 of the Replacement Local Plan require development to 
be of a high standard of design. The policies require regard to be given to the 
appearance of the surrounding area, the provision of safe and convenient access 
and circulation of pedestrians and vehicles, and incorporating crime prevention 
measures in the design and layout in terms of good lighting levels, natural 
surveillance, and defensible space and well considered layouts and landscaping.  
 
I note that the surrounding area is defined by a wide range of architectural styles. 
Whilst the area is predominantly 50’s / 60’s post war semi-detached dwellings, 
immediately to the south of the site are long terraces of bungalows fronting onto 
Cavendish Road.  
 
I note that the proposal would result in a high density development that would not 
reflect the density of the surrounding area. However I consider, given the limitations 
of the site, that every opportunity has been taken to provide green space and gaps in 
the built-up frontage for the development not to appear cramped or over-intensive 
within the existing streetscene.  
 
Given the mixture of architectural styles in the immediate vicinity and the size of the 
application site I consider that taking the opportunity to create a sense of place, 
introducing contemporary design principles and materials would add to the 
architectural mix in the area and would result in a positive feature in the immediate 
streetscene. The design also incorporates feature buildings on the access to the site 
creating a gateway into the development. These architectural features would help 
integrate the contemporary design into the existing street pattern creating its own 
identity within the existing streetscene.    
 
I consider the scale of the properties would be in keeping with the existing properties 
on Cavendish Road and would not detract from the architectural characteristics of 
the surrounding area.  
 
I am satisfied that an imaginative layout has been achieved. Despite the limited 
dimensions of the site and the number of properties being proposed, the layout 
achieves a frontage onto Cavendish Road with architectural features of merit. I 
consider this will ensure a positive contribution to the streetscene.  
 
During the processing of the application amendments were made to the design to 
ensure that the development was not over dominated by hardstanding for car 
parking, breaking up the car parking spaces with green space fronting onto 
Cavendish Road. Positive changes were also made to the scheme creating vistas 
through the development to feature buildings on visually prominent areas of the site.   
 
The use of a contemporary architectural style and materials is considered 
appropriate for this site and the resulting development. The layout and design of the 
access, parking and open space proposals are also acceptable with the unregistered 
right of way between Cavendish Road and Westdale Lane being retained, 
maintaining a good linkage for pedestrians.  
 
Having considered the overall design of the development and the constraining 

Page 24



factors of the site, it is my opinion that the proposal would satisfy the design and 
landscaping criteria of Policies ENV1 of the RLP and Policy 10 of the ACS. I also 
consider that the proposed development accords with the broad design aims of the 
NPPF, which states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning and should contribute positively to making places 
better for people.  
 
In my opinion, the proposed development would also meet the relevant design 
elements of Policy 10 of the ACS/PV in terms of the positive contribution it would 
make in the streetscene by virtue of its architectural style, detailing and materials.   
 
Highway Safety, Car Parking Provision and Rights of Way 
 
When considering the car parking provision the adopted Parking Provision for 
Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) May 2012 is 
relevant. When referring to the car parking SPD the proposed development for 38 
residential units with allocated car parking provision of 41 spaces would result in an 
additional demand for 18 unallocated spaces.  
 
The breakdown of car parking provision for the proposed development is as follows:  
 
 8     x   1 bedroom Maisonettes:  0 allocated spaces   
  19   x   2 bedroom Properties:   1 allocated space each 
 5     x   2 bedroom Properties:   2 allocated spaces each 
 6     x   3 bedroom Properties:   2 allocated spaces each 
 
 TOTAL:     41 allocated spaces 
 Unallocated Car Parking Provision:  17 unallocated car parking spaces. 
 
Resulting in an under provision of unallocated off street car parking provision of 1 
space. 
 
I note the development would result in an under provision of car parking. However; 
given that the under provision is by only 1 car parking space, that provision has been 
made for unallocated / visitor car parking and the majority of the properties are 1 and 
2 bedroomed affordable properties, it is my opinion that the development would 
provide sufficient off street car parking.  
 
I also note that the Highway Authority have been consulted and have not objected to 
the level of car parking provision. Whilst I note that the Highway Authority 
commented on the Submitted Plan 70-002-RevB a revised plan was received 
amending the car parking space serving plot 15. I am satisfied that this amendment 
would improve the layout of the development with the car parking space now at right 
angles to the adjoining highway.  Should planning permission be forthcoming I would 
suggest attaching the conditions from the Highway Authority with regards to the 
parking/turning and servicing areas, the new access provision, and details to prevent 
the deposit of debris upon the public highway with reference to the amended plan.  
 
I note the comments from the Rights of Way Officer and should planning permission 
be forthcoming I would suggest attaching an informative to any approval advising 

Page 25



that should the path be affected or obstructed in any way by the proposed 
development then appropriate closure orders or diversion orders should be sought. 
The surfacing of the unbuilt on portions of the site would be secured by condition and 
the Rights of Way office would be consulted should the surface of the path be 
proposed to be altered.  
  
Residential Amenity 
 
I note that the topography of the land drops in level from the rear boundaries of 
properties on South View Road onto the proposed development site. I also note that 
the gardens with the shortest length would back onto the proposed parking court that 
would be at a lower level. It is my opinion that the design of the scheme carefully 
considers the topography of the land, the location of neighbouring properties and 
adjoining garden depths to minimise any potential undue impact on neighbouring 
amenity. I am satisfied that the design and layout of the scheme would not result in 
any undue overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing impact on neighbouring 
amenity. With regards to the proximity of plots 11 and 12 to properties on South View 
Road, given the properties would be at a lower level with a minimum distance of 24 
metres between the properties, I am satisfied that there would be no undue impact 
on residential amenity as a result of this relationship.  
 
I note the concerns which have been raised with regards to the parking courts and 
the potential for anti-social behaviour. The Gedling Borough Council Parking 
Provision for Residential Properties accounts for the car parking demand of 
individual properties whilst appreciating that there can be additional demand for 
visitor car parking. Unallocated car parking on new development allows for a flexible 
approach to allocated parking, reducing the requirement for allocated spaces, whilst 
providing on street car parking to service additional demand. The proposed parking 
courts account for the additional demand for visitor parking whilst retaining a 
development that is not overly dominated by off-street allocated car parking provision 
to the front of individual properties. Whilst I note the concerns that are raised with 
regards to the potential for anti-social behaviour in these areas, during the 
processing of the application units 11 and 12 were amended to introduce side facing 
windows that face onto the parking court in the top northeast corner of the site. Units 
14 and 15 also front onto this parking court. It is my opinion that the amended 
elevations offer natural surveillance over the parking area which would provide a 
more defensible space. I also note that similar concerns are raised to the parking 
area adjacent to units 20 to 25, given that the front elevations of these properties 
face the parking areas I consider that this would provide sufficient natural 
surveillance to mitigate any potential for anti-social behaviour in this area. Should 
planning permission be forthcoming, a landscape condition would be attached to any 
approval requiring precise details of the column lighting and bollard-style luminaries 
to be used to ensure adequate crime prevention measures, natural surveillance, and 
defensible space.  
 
I note the representation received with regards to the potential negative impact from 
car headlights. However I am satisfied that there is a sufficient distance of 
approximately 15 metres to the rear elevations of the neighbouring properties and 
that suitable boundary treatments along the shared boundary would be sufficient to 
mitigate any undue luminance from headlights in this area.  

Page 26



 
I note the representation received with regards to appropriate boundary treatments 
being implemented. I am satisfied that appropriate boundary treatments can be 
implemented and that appropriate details should be secured by condition in this 
instance.  
 
Ecology 
 
The relevant planning policies that need to be considered in relation to ecological 
matters are set out in Policy 17 of the ACS and Section 11 of the NPPF. 
 
Policy 17 of the ACS states that development on or affecting non-designated sites or 
wildlife corridors with biodiversity value will only be permitted where it can be 
demonstrated that there is an overriding need for the development and that 
adequate mitigation measures are put in place. 
 
Section 11 of the NPPF advises, at paragraph 118, that when determining planning 
applications, local planning authorities should aim to conserve and enhance 
biodiversity by applying a number of principles, including the encouragement of 
opportunities to incorporate biodiversity in and around developments.  If significant 
harm resulting from a development cannot be avoided (through locating on an 
alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, 
compensated for, then planning permission should be refused. 
 
I note the comments from the Wildlife Trust with regards to the potential for bat 
roosts in the existing building. The current building is not currently derelict and I 
consider that an informative advising the applicant that bats are protected under the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 and should bats be found 
during the demolition then work should stop and the Bat Conservation Trust should 
be contacted to give advice.  
 
I also note the comments with regards to the suitable habitat for slow worms that can 
be seen on the application site. Likewise consider that an informative be attached to 
any approval advising that should slow worms be discovered on site a suitably 
qualified ecologist should be contacted to give specialist advice.  
 
Arboricultural Considerations 
 
The relevant planning policy which needs to be considered in relation to trees is set 
out in Policy 10 of the ACS which states that development must have regard to the 
local context, including valued landscape characteristics.  
 
I note the comments from the Forestry Manager that the tree survey presented is 
factually correct and that it offers appropriate detail. Should planning permission be 
forthcoming a condition would be attached requiring the works to be carried out in 
accordance with the submitted Tree Survey to ensure adequate and safe retention of 
trees on the site.  
 
Other Considerations  
 

Page 27



I note the concerns raised with regards to the materials for the proposed retaining 
wall and the details of lighting on the parking courts. I am satisfied that appropriate 
details can be secured by condition in this instance.  
 
Planning Obligations 
 
Paragraph 204 of the NPPF states that planning obligations should only be sought 
where they meet all of the following tests: 
 
� Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

 
� Directly related to the development; and 

 
� Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
Public Open Space 
 
I note that the development would be over the threshold of 0.4Ha and that a 
contribution towards open space would be required. The necessary improvements to 
open space can be secured by means of a financial contribution as part of a S106 
Agreement, should members agree with my recommendation, in accordance with 
Policies 12 and 19 of the ACS and paragraph 204. 
 
 
 
 
Education 
 
I note that the development would be over the threshold of 0.4Ha and also over 25 
dwellings and that a contribution towards education facilities would be required. The 
necessary improvements to education facilities can be secured by means of a 
financial contribution as part of a S106 Agreement, should members agree with my 
recommendation, in accordance with Policies 12 and 19 of the ACS and paragraph 
204. 
 
Healthcare  
 
I note that the development would be over the threshold of 0.4Ha and also over 10 
dwellings and that a contribution towards health care would be required. The 
necessary improvements to health care can be secured by means of a financial 
contribution as part of a S106 Agreement, should members agree with my 
recommendation, in accordance with Policies 12 and 19 of the ACS and paragraph 
204. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 
I note the comments received from Housing Strategy and Development that support 
the proposed development. In accordance with the affordable housing SPD, the 
requirement to provide 20% of the properties for affordable rent would be secured by 
condition in this instance. 

Page 28



 
The agent has been notified in writing of the thresholds for contributions and has 
forwarded solicitors details for instruction.  
 
Conclusion 
 
I am of the opinion that the proposed development would comply with the relevant 
planning policies that are set out above and that planning permission should be 
granted. 
 
 

Recommendation: 
 
That the Borough Council GRANTS PLANNING PERMISSION, subject to the 
applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement with the Borough Council as 
local planning authority, the County Council as education authority and the 
National Health Service for the provision of, or financial contributions towards 
Educational Facilities, Healthcare and Open Space; and subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
 
Conditions 
 
 
1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 

date of this permission. 
 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be completed in accordance with the 

approved plans drawing no's: 70-001, 70-002 Revision D, 00-000 Rev A, 20-
004 Rev A, 20-005 Rev A, 20-003 Rev A, and 20-002 Rev A. 

 
 
3. The development hereby permitted shall be completed in accordance with the 

Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement: 
Appendix 3, dated April 2014. 

 
 
4. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into use until 

the parking/turning/servicing areas are provided in accordance with the 
approved plan 70-002-RevD. The parking/turning/servicing areas shall not be 
used for any purpose other than parking/turning/loading and unloading of 
vehicles. 

 
 
5. No development shall commence on any part of the application site until a 

new access junction has been provided onto Cavendish Road as shown on 
drawing number 70-002-RevD to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Page 29



 
 
6. Details of measures to prevent the deposit of debris upon the adjacent public 

highway shall be submitted and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority prior to any works commencing on site. The approved measures 
shall be implemented prior to any works commencing on site. 

 
 
7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until details of 

the new road have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority including longitudinal and cross sectional gradients, street 
lighting, drainage and outfall proposals, construction specification, provision of 
and diversion of utilities services, and any proposed structural works. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with these details to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 
8. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until drainage plans 

for the disposal of surface water and foul sewage have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented 
in accordance with the approved details before the development is first 
brought into use. 

 
 
9. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved 

by the Borough Council precise details of the bricks and tiles to be used in the 
external elevations of the proposed development.  Once approved the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with these details. 

 
 
10. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Borough Council precise details of the means of enclosure of 
the site and precise details of the materials and structure of the retaining 
walls. Thereafter the means of enclosure shall be erected and retained in 
accordance with the approved details. 

 
 
11. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling details of the arrangements that 

will be put in place to ensure that a minimum of 20% of the housing hereby 
approved is provided as affordable as defined by Annex 2: Glossary of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) for both the first and 
subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The housing to be 
provided as part of the development shall be provided thereafter as affordable 
housing in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise prior 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 
12. Before development is first commenced full details of both hard and soft 

landscape works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Page 30



Planning Authority. Once approved the works shall be carried in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme of works that has been prior 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 
13. The hard and soft landscaping details to be submitted in relation to condition 

11 above shall include the following; proposed finished levels or contours of 
the site; hard surfacing materials for car parking areas, and other vehicular 
and pedestrian access and circulation areas; minor artefacts and structures 
such as column lighting and bollard style luminaries to communal car parking 
areas; planting plans; written specifications; schedules of plants (noting 
species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities) and a schedule of 
landscape maintenance for a minimum period of five years from the date that 
the soft landscape works are completed. 

 
Reasons 
 
1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004. 
 
2. For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
3. To ensure the adequate and safe tree retention on site in the interests of good 

Arboricultural practise. 
 
4. To ensure the development is constructed to adoptable standards 
 
5. To ensure the development is constructed to adoptable standards 
 
6. To reduce the possibility of deleterious material being deposited on the public 

highway (loose stones etc). 
 
7. To ensure the development is constructed to adoptable standards. 
 
8. To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage 

as well as to reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating a flooding problem 
and to minimise the risk of pollution. 

 
9. To ensure a satisfactory development, in accordance with the aims of policy 

ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies 
Saved 2014). 

 
10. To ensure a satisfactory development, in accordance with the aims of policy 

ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies 
Saved 2014). 

 
11. To ensure that the housing to be constructed shall be provided as affordable 

units in perpetuity and that the Borough Council as Local Planning Authority is 
meeting its obligations as set out in the Affordable Housing SPD and 

Page 31



contributing towards achieving affordable housing targets set and monitored 
by the Council. 

 
12. To ensure that the details of the development are acceptable , in accordance 

with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy ENV1 of 
the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014). 

 
13. To ensure that the final form of the development complies with policies ENV1, 

H7 and H16 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies 
Saved 2014). 

 
Reasons for Decision 
 
In the opinion of the Borough Council the proposed development is visually 
acceptable, results in no significant impact on neighbouring properties, the area in 
general and is acceptable from a highway safety viewpoint. The proposal therefore 
accords with H7, H16 and ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Council Replacement Local 
Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014) 
 
Notes to Applicant 
 
Planning Statement - The Borough Council has undertaken negotiations during the 
consideration of the application and during Pre Application discussions to address 
adverse impacts identified by officers to address concerns in connection with the 
proposal, addressing the identified adverse impacts, thereby resulting in a more 
acceptable scheme and favourable recommendation. The Borough Council has 
worked positively and proactively with the applicant in accordance with paragraphs 
186 to 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012). 
 
The attached permission is for development which will involve building up to, or close 
to, the boundary of the site.  Your attention is drawn to the fact that if you should 
need access to neighbouring land in another ownership in order to facilitate the 
construction of the building and its future maintenance you are advised to obtain 
permission from the owner of the land for such access before beginning your 
development. 
 
Notwithstanding any planning permission if any highway forming part of the 
development is to be adopted by the Highways Authority the new roads and any 
highway drainage will be required to comply with the Nottinghamshire County 
Council's current highway design guidance and specification for roadworks, the 
6CsDG. 
 
The Advanced Payments Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and under section 
219 of the Act payment will be required from the owner of the land fronting a private 
street on which a new building is to be erected. The Highway Authority should be 
contacted with regard to compliance with the Code, or alternatively to the issue of a 
Section 38 Agreement and bond under the Highways Act 1980.  A Section 38 
Agreement can take some time to complete. Therefore, it is recommended that the 
Highway Authority is contacted as early as possible. 
 

Page 32



In order to carry out the off-site works required you will be undertaking work in the 
public highway which is land subject to the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 (as 
amended) and therefore land over which you have no control. In order to undertake 
the works you will need to enter into an agreement under Section 278 of the Act. 
Please contact the County Council for details. 
 
I bring your attention to Carlton Parish Unregistered Footpath that passes through 
the site from Cavendish Road to Westdale Lane. The availability of the footpath 
should not be affected or obstructed in any way by the proposed development at this 
location unless subject to appropriate diversion or closure orders. 
 
It is noted that suitable habitat for slow worms exist on site. Should any slow worms 
be found during works to clear the site, work must stop immediately until a suitably 
qualified ecologist has attended the site to ensure that potential impacts on this 
protected species are properly considered and to enable any required mitigation to 
be incorporated into the development. Slow Worms are protected under Schedule 5, 
Section 9 (1 and 5) of the Wildlife and Countryside ACT 1981 and the Countryside 
and Rights of Way act 2000 against deliberate or reckless killing and injuring and 
sale. 
 
The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain 
unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining feature is encountered 
during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 
0845 762   6848. Further information is also available on The Coal Authority website 
at www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, current and 
future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal Authority's Property 
Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at www.groundstability.com. 
 
Should any bat/s be found during demolition, work must stop immediately. If the 
bat/s does not voluntarily fly out, the aperture is to be carefully covered over to 
provide protection from the elements whilst leaving a small gap for the bat to excape 
should it so desire. The Bat Conservation Trust should be contacted immediately on 
(0845) 1300228 for further advice and they will provide a licensed bat worker to 
evaluate the situation and give advice. Failure to comply is an offence under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010 which makes it an offence to kill, injure or disturb a bat or to 
destroy any place used for rest or shelter by a bat (even if bats are not in residence 
at the time). The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 strengthens the protection 
afforded to bats covering 'reckless' damage or disturbance to a bat roost.  
 
 

 
 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



ACTION SHEET PLANNING DELEGATION PANEL  7th November 2014 
 
 
 
2014/0947 
18 Forest Road Calverton Nottingham 
Loft conversion with dormer window 
 
Application to be reported back to Panel following further discussions with agent 
 
 
 
 
2014/0972 
14 Newlands Drive Gedling Nottingham 
Proposed Ground floor front and side extension, first floor side extension. New front porch. 
 
The proposed development would have no undue impact on the streetscene, the 
residential amenity of adjacent properties or highway safety. 
 
The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority. 
 
Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork. 
 
 
 
 
2014/1019 
117 Sandfield Road Arnold Nottingham 
No.1  2 Bedroom Bungalow 
 
The proposed development would have no undue impact on the streetscene, the 
residential amenity of adjacent properties or highway safety. 
 
The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority. 
 
Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork. 
 
 
 
 
2014/1040 
18 Monsell Drive Redhill Nottingham 
Retain ground floor extension, new garage roof and front canopy roof as built (material 
amendment to that approved under 2012/1243) 
 
The proposed development would have no undue impact on the streetscene, the 
residential amenity of adjacent properties. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 35



 
The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority. 
 
Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork. 
 
 
 
 
2014/1119 
4 Adbolton Avenue Gedling Nottinghamshire 
Demolish existing bungalow and construct 2no. 3 bed dwellings. Retain existing front and 
side boundary walls. 
 
The proposed development would have no undue impact on the streetscene, the 
residential amenity of adjacent properties or highway safety 
 
The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority. 
 
Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork. 
 
 
 
 
 
7th November 2014 
 

Page 36



PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 
 
ITEM FOR INFORMATION 
 
The following planning applications or details have been submitted and are receiving 
consideration.  They may be reported to a future meeting of the Planning Committee and are 
available for inspection online at:  http://pawam.gedling.gov.uk:81/online-applications/ 
 
Alternatively, hard copies may be viewed at Gedling1Stop or by prior arrangement with 
Development Management. 
 

App No Address Proposal 
Possible 
Date 

2013/1010 
 
 
 

Georges Lane Burial 
Ground Calverton  
 
 

Change of use of agricultural field 
to create natural burial ground with 
associated car park  
 

TBC 
 
 
 

2013/0238  
 
 
 

Land West of Westhouse 
Farm, Moor Road, 
Bestwood  
 

Proposed residential development 
for 101 dwelling units, new access, 
amenity space and open space  
 

10/12/14 
 
 

2014/0169 
 
 
 

Gedling Care Home, 23 
Waverley Avenue, Gedling  
 
 

Demolition of care home and 
construction of 14 apartments, car 
parking and associated landscaping  
 

TBC 
 
 

2014/0273 
 
 
 

Land at the corner of 
Longdale Lane and Kighill 
Lane Ravenshead  
 

Site for residential development (31 
dwellings)  
 
 

TBC 
 
 
 

2014/0740  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Land Adjacent Bradstone 
Drive Spring Lane Lambley  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hybrid Planning comprising Part A 
Full Planning Application for the 
creation of temporary access and 
enabling earth works to create 
development platform, Part B 
outline planning application for 
residential development of up to 
150 houses with associated access 
landscaping and public open space. 
Approval sought for access. All 
other matters reserved. 
 

TBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2014/0556 
 
 
 

Barracks Farm Forest Lane 
 
 
 

Erection of a 500kw wind turbine 
with tip height up to 77m  
 
 

27/11/2014* 
 
 
 

2014/0915  
 
 

A612 Burton Road/B684 
Mapperley Plains  
 

Gedling Access Road  
 
 

27/11/2014* 
 
 

2014/0916 
 
 

Gedling House, Wood 
Lane, Gedling  
 

Partial Demolition and rebuilding of 
garden wall (works required in 
association with GAR) 

27/11/2014* 
 
 

2014/0950 
 

Top Wighay Annesley Road 
Linby  

Residential development 38 
dwellings 

TBC 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



2014/1118 Former Electricity 
Substation Rectory Road 
Colwick  

13 Residential Units TBC 

 
Please note that the above list is not exhaustive; applications may be referred at short notice 
to the Committee by the Planning Delegation Panel or for other reasons.  The Committee date 
given is the earliest anticipated date that an application could be reported, which may change 
as processing of an application continues.  
 
* Please note that the meeting on the 27th November is a special planning committee  

Page 38


	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 29 October 2014
	Planning Committee Protocol.
	4 Application Number 2014 0559 - The Cavendish Pub, Cavendish Road, Carlton, Nottingham
	5 Planning Delegation Action Sheets
	6 Future Planning Applications

